ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVWM TTEE
April 4, 2013
9:01 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Fred Dyson, Chair
Senator Cathy G essel, Vice Chair
Senat or John Coghi | |
Senator Bill W el echowski
MEMBERS ABSENT

Senat or Bert Stedman
OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Senator Johnny Ellis

COW TTEE CALENDAR

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS

Al aska Police Standards Counci l
Bob Kean

- CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED

Al aska Public Ofices Conm ssion
Ron Ki ng

- CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED
CS FOR HOUSE JO NT RESCLUTI ON NO. 12( EDT)
Encouragi ng the manufacture of firearns and firearns accessories
in the state.

- MOVED CSHJR 12(EDT) OUT OF COWM TTEE

COW TTEE SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BILL NO. 1(STA) AM
"An Act relating to issuance of drivers' |licenses."

- MOVED CSHB 1(STA) AM OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 113

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- April 4, 2013



"An Act relating to the nenbership of the Al aska Fire Standards
Counci | ."

- HEARD & HELD

CS FOR HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 6( EDT)

Recogni zing the Alaska Center for Unmanned Aircraft Systens
Integration at the University of Alaska Fairbanks as a nationa
| eader in wunmanned aircraft research and developnent; and
relating to a Task Force on Unmanned Aircraft Systens.

- HEARD & HELD

SENATE BI LL NO. 64

"An Act establishing the Al aska Sentencing Conm ssion; relating
to jail-tinme credit for offenders in court-ordered treatnent
prograns; allowing a reduction of penalties for offenders
successfully conpleting court-ordered treatnment prograns for
persons convicted of driving while wunder the influence or
refusing to submt to a chemcal test; relating to court
termnation of a revocation of a person's driver's |license;
relating to Ilimtation of drivers' licenses; relating to
conditions of ©probation and parole; and providing for an
effective date.”

- BILL HEARI NG POSTPONED
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HIR 12

SHORT TITLE: SUPPORT | N- STATE FI REARMS MANUFACTURI NG
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) CHENAULT

03/ 14/ 13 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

03/ 14/ 13 (H) EDT

03/ 26/ 13 (H EDT AT 11:15 AM BARNES 124

03/ 26/ 13 (H) Moved CSHIR 12(EDT) Qut of Committee

03/ 26/ 13 (H) M NUTE( EDT)

03/ 27/ 13 (H EDT RPT CS(EDT) 7DP

03/ 27/ 13 (H) DP: HIGANS, PRUTT, HERRON, JOHNSON,
GATTI'S, DRUMMOND, HUGHES

03/ 28/ 13 (H) TRANSM TTED TO (S)

03/ 28/ 13 (H) VERS| ON:  CSHIR 12( EDT)

03/ 29/ 13 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

03/ 29/ 13 (S) STA

04/ 04/ 13 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- April 4, 2013



BILL: HB 1
SHORT TI TLE: DURATI ON OF DRI VER S LI CENSE
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) LYNN, HAWKER, CHENAULT, JOHNSON

01/ 16/ 13 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 7/ 13

01/ 16/ 13 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

01/ 16/ 13 (H STA, JUD

01/ 29/ 13 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

01/ 29/ 13 (H Moved CSHB  1(STA) Qut of Conmmttee

01/ 29/ 13 (H M NUTE( STA)

01/ 30/ 13 (H) STA RPT CS(STA) 7DP

01/ 30/ 13 (H DP: HUGHES, M LLETT, |SAACSON, KELLER,
GATTI S, KREI SS- TOWKI NS, LYNN

02/ 18/ 13 (H JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

02/ 18/ 13 (H Heard & Held

02/ 18/ 13 (H) M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 27/ 13 (H) JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

03/ 27/ 13 (H Moved CSHB  1(STA) Qut of Conmmittee

03/ 27/ 13 (H) M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 28/ 13 (H) JUD RPT CS(STA) 5DP 2NR

03/ 28/ 13 (H DP: M LLETT, PRUI TT, LYNN, FOSTER,
KELLER

03/ 28/ 13 (H NR: GRUENBERG LEDOUX

04/ 01/ 13 (H TRANSM TTED TO (S)

04/ 01/ 13 (H) VERSI ON:'  CSHB 1( STA) AM

04/ 02/ 13 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

04/ 02/ 13 (S) STA

04/ 04/ 13 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

BILL: HB 113
SHORT TI TLE:. ALASKA FI RE STANDARDS COUNCI L
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) FEI GE

02/ 13/ 13 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
02/ 13/ 13 (H STA, FIN

03/ 05/ 13 (H) STA RPT 3DP 2NR

03/ 05/ 13 (H DP: | SAACSON, KREI SS- TOWKI NS, LYNN
03/ 05/ 13 (H NR  GATTI S, KELLER

03/ 05/ 13 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 05/ 13 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

03/ 05/ 13 (H M NUTE( STA)

03/ 22/ 13 (H) FIN AT 1:30 PM HOUSE FI NANCE 519
03/ 22/ 13 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

03/ 22/ 13 (H) M NUTE( FI N)

03/ 25/ 13 (H) FIN RPT 7DP

03/ 25/ 13 (H DP: GUTTENBERG, HOLMES, MJUNQZ, EDGVON,

GARA, COSTELLO, AUSTERMAN

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- April 4, 2013



03/ 28/ 13 (H) TRANSM TTED TO (S)

03/ 28/ 13 (H) VERSI ON: HB 113

03/ 29/ 13 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 29/ 13 (S) STA

04/ 04/ 13 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
BILL: HCR 6

SHORT TITLE: EST. LEG TASK FORCE ON UNMANNED Al RCRAFT
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) HUGHES

03/ 15/ 13 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS

03/ 15/ 13 (H) EDT

03/ 26/ 13 (H) EDT AT 11:15 AM BARNES 124

03/ 26/ 13 (H) Moved CSHCR 6(EDT) Qut of Committee

03/ 26/ 13 (H) M NUTE( EDT)

03/ 27/ 13 (H EDT RPT CS(EDT) 5DP 2NR

03/ 27/ 13 (H) DP: PRU TT, JOHNSON, GATTI'S, DRUMVOND,
HUGHES

03/ 27/ 13 (H) NR. H GG NS, HERRON

03/ 29/ 13 (H) TRANSM TTED TO (S)

03/ 29/ 13 (H) VERS| ON:  CSHCR 6( EDT)

04/ 01/ 13 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

04/ 01/ 13 (S) STA

04/ 04/ 13 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

RON KI NG Appoi nt ee

Al aska Public Ofices Conm ssion

Kasi | of, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented information related to his
confirmation hearing.

CHUCK KOPP, St aff

Senator Fred Dyson

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of M. Bob Kean,
appoi ntee, Chugi ak, Al aska, who was unable to be present.

TOM WRI GHT, Staff

Representative M ke Chenaul t

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced HIR 12 on behal f of the sponsor.

M KE COONS, representing hinself

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- April 4, 2013



Lazy Mountai n, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 12 and HB 1.

REPRESENTATI VE BOB LYNN

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of HB 1.

DEAN WAUSQN, Supervisory Special Agent

Honel and Security Investigations

| mm gration and Custons Enforcenent

U. S. Departnent of Honmel and Security

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 1.

AMY ERI CKSON, Director

Di vision of Mtor Vehicles

Depart ment of Adm nistration

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to HB 1.

SHELLY MELLOT, Deputy Director

Di vi sion of Mdtor Vehicles

Depart ment of Adm nistration

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to HB 1.

FORREST WOLFE, Staff

Representative Bob Lynn

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to HB 1.

JEFFERY M TTMAN, Executive Director

American G vil Liberties Union (ACLU) of Al aska

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded testinony in opposition to HB 1.

M CHAEL PASCHALL, Staff
Representative Eric Feige

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of HB 113.

BUDDY LANE, Chair

Al aska Fire Standards Council
Fai r banks, Al aska

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- April 4, 2013



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 113.

REPRESENTATI VE SHELLEY HUGHES

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of HCR 6.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

9:01: 28 AM

CHAIR FRED DYSON called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 9:01 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Coghill, G essel, and Chair Stedman. Senator
W el echowski arrived shortly thereafter.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS
Al aska Police Standards Counci
Al aska Public O fices Conm ssion

9:02: 46 AM
CHAI R DYSON announced that the first order of business woul d be
two Confirmation Hearings.

RON KI NG Appointee, Al aska Public Ofices Conmmi ssion, presented
information related to his confirmation hearing. He said he is
currently retired and when asked by the Republican Party to
represent the Restricted Republican Seat, he imedi ately agreed
to do so. He shared his background with the Republican Party and
his work history, stating he is qualified to serve on APCC

CHAI R DYSON t hanked M. King. He maintained that what is needed
is soneone who is a clear thinker with good judgnment and has the
courage of his or her convictions.

SENATOR COGHI LL noted that he recomended M. King. He descri bed
hi s good work and hi ghly recommended hi m

9:06: 34 AM
At ease

CHUCK KOPP, Staff, Senator Fred Dyson, testified on behalf of
M. Bob Kean, appointee, Chugiak, Al aska, who was unable to be
present. He shared M. Kean's exenplary service on the Police
St andar ds Counci | .

CHAI R DYSON t hanked M. Kopp.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- April 4, 2013



CHAIR DYSON noved to forward the followi ng appointnents to a
joint session for consideration:

Al aska Police Standards Counci
Bob Kean

Al aska Public O fices Conm ssion
Ron Ki ng

CHAIR DYSON clarified that the notion does not reflect an intent
by any of the nenbers to vote against or for the confirmation of
the individuals during any further sessions. There being no
objection, it was so ordered.

HIR 12- SUPPORT | N- STATE FI REARMS MANUFACTURI NG

9:09: 20 AM
CHAI R DYSON announced that the next order of business would be
HIR 12.

TOM WRI GHT, Staff, Representative M ke Chenault, sponsor of HIR

12, introduced the bill on behalf of the sponsor. He related
that HIJIR 12 is based on a resolution recently introduced in
Montana. The bill encourages and invites gun nanufacturers, gun

accessory manufacturers, and suppliers to cone to Al aska,
especially from states that are passing nore restrictive gun
| aws. He gave an exanple of a conmpany that stated it would nove
from Col orado because of the strict gun laws that were recently
enact ed.

He stated that a nunmber of states are considering this
| egi sl ation, but none so far have passed a resol ution.

CHAI R DYSON t hanked M. Wight. He expected that the bill would
pass out of conmttee.

M KE COONS, speaking on his own behalf, testified in support of
HIR 12. He said that Alaska is a firearns-friendly state, with a
great workforce and plenty of room for firearns manufacturers

He suggested expanding the resolution to include ammunition
manuf acturers. He spoke of Second Amendnent rights.

9:13: 04 AM

SENATOR COCHI LL asked if there has been any discussion about gun
manuf acturers applying for a business |license in Al aska.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- April 4, 2013



MR WRIGHT replied that he was not aware of any. He said that
the sponsor has invited Magpul Gun Mnufacturers to cone to
Al aska and has l|let them know that Alaska is gun-friendly and has
a trained | abor force.

CHAI R DYSON added that Al aska has one of the best air-freight
connections in the world and an excellent marine transportation
system

MR. WRI GHT said New Hanpshire is also inviting gun manufacturers
to their state. He pointed out that ammo nmakers are included in
gun accessory manufact urers.

CHAIR DYSON said the bill addresses "firearmrelated groups and
busi nesses. "

9:15: 02 AM
SENATOR G ESSEL noved to report CS for HIR 12, |abeled 28-
LS0619\U, from conmttee wth individual recomendations and
attached =zero fiscal note. There being no objection, CSHIR
12(EDT) was reported from the Senate State Affairs Standing
Conmi ttee.

9:15: 30 AM
At ease

HB 1- DURATI ON OF DRI VER S LI CENSE

9:16: 13 AM
CHAI R DYSON announced that the next order of business would be
HB 1. [CSHB 1(STA) AM was before the commttee.]

REPRESENTATI VE BOB LYNN, sponsor of HB 1, introduced the bill to
the commttee. He said the bill does one thing; it permts the
Department of Mdtor Vehicles (DW) to issue a driver's license
for less than five years. He pointed out that today a person can
walk into a DW with a visa that expires in two weeks and obtain
a driver's license for five years. HB 1 links the duration of a
driver's license to the duration of a legal docunent. In rare
cases such as when a person has a visa for an indefinite period
for refugee status or asylum a driver's license can be issued
for a year with a renewal for up to five years wth no
additional cost to the applicant. This bill does not change how
anyone currently obtains a driver's license and it does not
change who can get one.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- April 4, 2013



He said that HB 1 is considered "best practices" by the Anmerican

Associ ation of Mtor Vehicles. A simlar bill has passed in 36
states plus the District of Colunbia. The House State Affairs
Commttee and the House Judiciary Conmittee vetted the bill, as

has the Departnent of Law and Legal Services.

CHAIR DYSON referred to a letter fromthe University of Al aska
He explained the letter raises the question as to how the bill
woul d affect foreign students.

9:19:15 AM
DEAN WAUSON, Supervisory Special Agent, Honel and Security
| nvesti gati ons, Imm gration and Custons Enforcenent, U. S

Department of Honeland Security (DHS), testified in support of
HB 1. He explained his involvenment with enforcing inmgration
aw. He agreed with Representative Lynn's opinion of the bill as
it relates to inmmgration law. He offered to answer questions
regardi ng foreign students and the application of the |aw

CHAI R DYSON asked if DHS is confortable with the bill.

MR. VWAUSON clarified that he is representing hinself today, not
DHS.

CHAI R DYSON asked if DHS has taken an official position.

MR. VWAUSON sai d no.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked if the federal governnent determnes a
person's legal presence in this country and how |long they can
st ay.

MR. WAUSON sai d yes.

9:22:26 AM

SENATOR G ESSEL asked why it is a problem to have a driver's

| icense beyond the expiration date of a visa.

MR. WAUSON expl ained it becones a problem when the visa is used
as an identification card. For exanple, a person currently is

able to obtain a driver's license that's good for five years
even if their visa expires next week. That allows an individua
to further an illegal presence in the United States and could
lead to illegal enploynment and other benefits.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- April 4, 2013



CHAI R DYSON suggested that unenploynent insurance, welfare, and
ot her issues could also be abused. A driver's license validates
their qualifying for those benefits.

MR. WAUSON said that is correct. He explained that HB 1 would
provide for issuing a driver's license only for the period of
time a person may legally remain in the country. It would apply
mainly to foreign visitors, not inmmgrants.

9:25: 33 AM
CHAI R DYSON asked when soneone's visa expires, how the agency
finds out if they have left the country.

MR. WAUSON said in sonme cases the agency knows and in sonme cases
t hey don't.

9:26: 09 AM

AMY ERICKSON, Director, Division of Mtor Vehicles (DW),
Department of Administration, answered questions related to HB
1

CHAI R DYSON said he is inpressed by how well DW works. He asked
which credentials are required in order for a non-Anerican to
get a driver's license.

M5. ERICKSON listed the credentials: a foreign passport, a
resident alien or tenporary resident alien authorization, or
evidence of conparable validity, such as a birth certificate
abr oad.

CHAI R DYSON asked what Al askans need.

M5. ERICKSON said they would need a social security card, birth
certificate, or marriage |icense.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked what a foreign student would have to
present to DW in order to obtain a |icense.

M5. ERICKSON responded that they would need an F-1 visa, a
forei gn passport, and an |-120 Form

SENATOR G ESSEL asked how many foreign students have been
processed.

M5. ERI CKSON deferred to DW to answer.

9: 28: 58 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- April 4, 2013



MR. WAUSON explained that an F-1 student would have a passport
and an F-1 visa in order to enter the United States. The F-1
visa only lasts a few days and would not be indicative of the
duration of status. An 1-120 form would show |awful adm ssion
and the duration of their stay. Foreign students are in a
category of individuals whose tine period is l|less narrowy
defined. The university is required to provide docunentation of
enrol I ment verification every senester to DHS

SENATOR G ESSEL related her son's positive experience wth
foreign students in college in Fairbanks. She noted that foreign
students were involved in 9/11.

MR. WAUSON agreed that foreign students do pose a significant
threat. He said one of the priorities of the Honeland Ofice is
to keep an eye on foreign students.

CHAI R DYSON asked what happens to a student who nust extend the
l ength of their stay.

MR. WAUSON explained that the process is not so inportant
because they are a student and can apply to inmmgration to
change the duration of their stay. They would be eligible for
tenporary relief and eligible to obtain docunentation from
Citizenship and Immgration Services stating their current
st at us.

9:34:10 AM

CHAI R DYSON gave an exanple a foreign student who is in school
for 48 nonths to get a degree and becones injured and has to
| eave school for a tine.

MR. VWAUSON expl ained that the student could easily extend their
stat us.

CHAI R DYSON noted the arrival of Senator W el echowski

SENATOR W ELECHOASKI  asked about applying for a driver's
i cense.

CHAI R DYSON sai d the question has been answer ed.
M5. ERI CKSON reiterated the process.
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI noted a U. S. Suprenme Court case on the

purpose of driver's licenses - United States v. Canpos- Serrano.
He said the primary purpose of a driver's license is to allow

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- April 4, 2013



its bearer to lawfully drive a car. He asked if that is stil
t he | aw

M5. ERI CKSON sai d yes.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if a driver's license is intended to
docunent ones inmm gration status.

M5. ERICKSON said it is not.

CHAIR DYSON related that people often msuse driver's |icenses
and try to claim inmgration status in order to apply for
benefits.

9:37:42 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if people can renew their |icenses by
mai |

M5. ERICKSON said yes, if they have not renewed by nmuail the
previous tine.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI gave an exanple of soneone who noved to
Al aska on a tenporary visa and their job requires them to stay
longer. He inquired if that person can mail in a renewal.

MS. ERI CKSON deferred to soneone from DW to answer.

SHELLY WMELLOT, Deputy Director, D vision of Mtor Vehicles,
Department of Administration, answered questions related to HB
1. She described the process whereby people in rural Al aska can
mail in their renewal application if there is no DW avail abl e.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI understood that there was a renewal -by-
mai | - provi sion that was stricken in the House.

FORREST WOLFE, Staff, Representative Bob Lynn, explained that
the phrase "by mail" was renoved at DW' s recomendati on because
they felt it mght be too |imting. In the future |icensing may
be done on the internet.

9:40: 38 AM

SENATOR W ELECHONSKI continued with his exanple of a person in
Aniak with a three-nonth visa that expires so the person renews
their driver's license by mail. He asked if the bill would allow
the license to be automatically renewed and for what period of
tinme.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- April 4, 2013



CHAIR DYSON assuned if the bill passes, the driver's license
woul d have only been extended to the end of the visa period.

MS. MELLOT said Senator Dyson is correct. She explained the
Iicense would have been initially issues for 90 days and to get
it renewed they would need to send in information that shows the
visa was extended. The l|icense would be extended for the tine
the visa stated.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI concl uded that under the bill the license
could be renewed solely by mail.

MB. MELLOT sai d yes.

9:42:21 AM

JEFFERY M TTMAN, Executive Director, Anmerican Cvil Liberties
Union (ACLU) of Al aska, provided testinony in opposition to HB
1. He suggested that the conmttee contact Margaret Stock, an
attorney who specializes in this issue.

He noted that a driver's license does not establish residency.
He stressed that the purpose of the license is to allow one to
drive safely. A variety of states require that individuals who
are not in the country legally cannot drive. Sone states have
decided that it is better practice to have the DW ensure that
the roads are safe and those who are driving are insured and
know how to drive.

He noted that the bill deals with those who are lawfully
present. The ACLU questions how the federal governnent would
view a bill that treats lawful immgrants who are a suspect
class under the law, differently than citizens. He spoke in
opposition to the provision in the bill that requires a
tenporary worker to experience the burden of renewal. He
mai ntained there is no benefit to the state. He recalled case
I aw. He suggested that it is the federal governnent's

responsibility to govern inmm gration status and | awmful presence.

9:46: 27 AM
SENATOR COGHILL asked if there are lawsuits against other
entities that require identification, such as banks or TSA.

MR MTTMAN said there have been none to date. He gave an
exanple of a situation where a driver's license is not adequate
for identification such as lawful presence in the country. He
noted that REAL ID has inposed sone additional requirenents;

SENATE STA COW TTEE -13- April 4, 2013



however, Al aska has stated that it does not want a national |ID
card.

9:48: 30 AM

SENATOR COGHI LL shared a story about a person who could not
travel without a driver's |license. He spoke of the variation in
visas and the fact that the license cannot track the duration of
a visa. He questioned a greater restriction on using driver's
i censes.

MR MTTMAN suggested getting Attorney Stock's opinion. He
opined that it is not fair to the DW to assune they will becone
experts in the area of types of visas.

9:50: 40 AM

MR. COONS inquired if the person who is not a citizen could use
their driver's license to sign up for voter registration and
vote. He asked how voter registration would know whether the
person is an alien and not eligible to vote. He wondered if the
licenses are flagged when the visa expires.

He stated full support for HB 1 because it gives |aw enforcenent
officers a valuable tool in determning those who are legally in
the United States.

M5. ERICKSON explained that when a person fills out an
application for a driver's license, they are asked if they are a
U.S. citizen and they can register to vote at that tine.

CHAIR DYSON restated M. Coons' question about qualifying to
vot e.

MR. WOLFE wunderstood that nore docunentation showing U.S.
citizenship nust be shown in order to vote, such as a social
security card.

CHAI R DYSON agr eed.

MR COONS reiterated his question about flagging driver's
| i censes.

9:55: 02 AM

MR. WOLFE, clarified that the license is not flagged, just the
expiration date. They would have to prove their length of state
was approved.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- April 4, 2013



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked how many |icenses are issued to non-
Anmer i cans.

MS. MELLOT said DW does not keep track of that.

SENATOR W ELECHOANSKI inquired if the bill fixes a problem that
exi st s.

MS. ERI CKSON could not say whether DW is fixing a problem but
noted that it supports the |egislation.

SENATOR W ELECHOASKI asked if DW is in the business of
i mm gration.

MR. WAUSON addressed the question. He said misuse of a driver's
license is a problem He knew of people in the country illegally
who traveled to Alaska to get the 5-year license and said it
happens on a regul ar basis.

He addressed a previous question about applying for the license
by mail. He pointed out that even though M. Mttman clouded the
i ssue between immgrants and non-inmgrants, he said that under
HB 1, an immgrant would be handled the same way as a U.S.
citizen and be issued 5-year driver's |icense. A non-inmm grant
with a defined period of stay doesn't need an Al aska driver's
license. Tenporary visitors for work or tourism for 90 days can
drive using their foreign |licenses.

9:59: 54 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if the bill is a furthering of the
federal REAL ID | aw.

MR. VWAUSON said he did not know.

MR. WOLFE said it has nothing to do with it.

SENATOR W ELECHOABKI asked what the purpose of the bill is.

MR. WOLFE responded that sponsor does not believe that Al aska
should be issuing official docunentation that outlasts and
contradicts the federal government's docunentati on. Al so,
someone can get a driver's license even though their visa is
soon to expire. This legislation is already on the books in 36
states and has never been chal |l enged.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if the legislation is for naking sure
Al aska has qualified drivers or for immgration reasons.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 15- April 4, 2013



MR WOLFE said has nothing to do wth inmmgration. The
provisions are for tenporary visitors.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI continued to argue the issue.

MR WOLFE replied that the bill does determne whether a
tenporary visitor is allowed to drive or not and it is an
officially recognized piece of identification.

10: 03: 20 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOANSKI noted that there are many Hnhong in his
district and many refugees wi thout identification. He asked how
this legislation would affect them

CHAI R DYSON suggested DHS answer the questi on.

MR  WAUSON said all refugees are eligible for enploynent
docunents for one-year periods while their |egal status is being
checked. He noted Laos refugees are not illegal and do have
docunentation of their arrivals. After a year they can apply
for, and receive, residency.

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI stated he believes that DW is becomng a
de facto immgration regulator. He maintained that the federa
government should regul ate i mm gration.

10: 07: 04 AM

CHAI R DYSON understood that the sponsor intends to keep the
Al aska driver's license from becom ng sonething other than a
license.

MR. WOLFE agr eed.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI questioned why DW needs this bill. Oher
organi zati ons decide which docunents prove immgration status
He wi shed to know what the purpose of issuing drivers' |icenses
iS.

M5. ERI CKSON said DW does not intend to become an inmgration
enforcenment agency. She said DW would continue to evaluate
gover nment - provi ded docunments and issues |icenses based on the
i nformation on the docunents.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI restated his question.

SENATOR COGHI LL nmai ntai ned that the question has been answered.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -16- April 4, 2013



SENATOR W ELECHOWSBKI di sagr eed.

CHAI R DYSON pointed out that a DW driver's license is used as
identification to buy liquor. People are using the license for
ot her purposes, which is not DW' s fault. The bill is trying to
make sure people are not using their licenses illegally.

He noted that the sponsor agrees.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked about the Hrong identification issue
and whether the bill will inpact their ability to get a |icense.

10: 10: 01 AM
M5. ERI CKSON understood that it would not. She said the Hmrong
are refugees and have sone form of docunentation.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI noted that many do not have docunentati on.

CHAIR DYSON said that issue needs to be taken up wth
i mm gration.

SENATOR G ESSEL referred to an email from Ms. Stock and a letter
from the Attorney Ceneral that states there is no basis for a
constitutional challenge of HB 1.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked if they could hear from Ms. Stock.

MR. WOLFE said Ms. Stock has been invited to three conmttee
hearings and has not attended. He suggested M. Wauson could
refute her testinony.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI asked if she has been asked to testify.

CHAI R DYSON sai d no, nor has she volunteered to testify.

SENATOR W ELECHOASKI asked what the next commttee of referral
is.

CHAI R DYSON did not think the bill had a Judiciary referral.
SENATOR COGHI LL said it didn't.

MR WOLFE said it was vetted in House Judiciary where M.
Stock's issues were rebutted. He noted letters of support.

10: 13: 25 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -17- April 4, 2013



CHAI R DYSON asked if there were court challenges in the other 36
st at es.

MR WOLFE said never. He noted a review of the bill by
Representati ve G uenberg that discovered no probl ens.

CHAI R DYSON asked how | ong the states have had this |egislation.
MR. WOLFE offered to find out.

CHAIR DYSON inquired if it was nore than a year.

MR. WOLFE sai d yes.

CHAI R DYSON asked whi ch version was before the commttee.

MR WOLFE said version 28-LS0008\ QO A.

10: 15: 06 AM

SENATOR G ESSEL noved to report CS for HB 1, |abeled 28-

LSO008\O A, from commttee with individual recomendations and
attached zero fiscal note.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI objected. He asked if the bill has a
referral to another commttee.

CHAI R DYSON t hought it went to Senate Rules Comm ttee.
MR. WOLFE said that is correct.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI stated that he has to object to noving the
bill because it is a fairly major change in |law and there are no
nore referrals. He said he needs nore time to study the bill.

A roll call vote was taken. Senators G essel, Coghill, and Chair
Dyson voted in favor of reporting HB 1 from conmttee and
Senat or W el echowski voted against it. Therefore, CSHB 1(STA) am
passed fromthe Senate State Affairs Standing Commttee by a 3:1
vot e.

10:16: 33 AM
At ease

HB 113- ALASKA FI RE STANDARDS COUNCI L

10:17:44 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 18- April 4, 2013



CHAI R DYSON announced that the next order of business would be
HB 113.

M CHAEL PASCHALL, Staff, Representative Eric Feige, sponsor of
HB 113, introduced the bill. He stated a possible conflict,
noting that both he and Representative Feige are both
firefighters, but not currently eligible to serve on the Al aska
Fire Standards Council. He explained the mission of the Fire
Standards Council is to establish professional standards for
fire service personnel and curriculum requirenents for the
certification of training progranms. There are currently eleven
nmenbers on the Council. The Council, along with three statew de
organi zations, has requested the conposition of the Council to
be changed. He said there were currently three statew de
organi zations that represent those in the fire service: the
Alaska State Fire Chiefs Association, the Al aska State
Firefighters Associ ati on, and t he Al aska Pr of essi onal
Firefighters Association. He noted that each organization has
asked to have a seat at the table and the only way to do so,
whil e keeping a bal ance between the current nenbership in terns
of firefighters versus fire chiefs, is to add one nenber to the
Counci | .

SENATOR d ESSEL asked who pays for the neetings of the Council.

MR, PASCHALL deferred to the chair of the Council. He said there
are fees associated with sone of the certifications, and there
is also a general fund transfer for travel. He recalled it cost
$2,400 a year for one nenber to travel.

BUDDY LANE, Chair, Alaska Fire Standards Council, testified in
support of HB 113. He offered to answer questions.

10: 22: 14 AM

SENATOR G ESSEL said the fiscal note is zero, yet no board or
commi ssion can exist with a zero fiscal note. She requested
clarification.

MR. LANE thought the original fiscal note was around $2,000 for
travel for an additional seat. That was renmoved in the | ast
commi ttee.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked who pays for travel, the assessnent of
f ees.

MR. LANE said that is correct. He explained that fees and
general fund appropriation make up the Council's funds. The fees

SENATE STA COW TTEE -19- April 4, 2013



vary every year depending on the nunber of certificates
processed.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked if the Council is not self-supporting and
requi res general funds.

MR. LANE said that is correct.
CHAI R DYSON held HB 113 in commttee.

HCR 6- EST. LEG TASK FORCE ON UNMANNED Al RCRAFT

10: 24: 34 AM
CHAI R DYSON announced that the final order of business would be
HCR 6. [CSHCR 6( EDT) was before the comittee.]

REPRESENTATI VE SHELLEY HUGHES, sponsor of HCR 6, explained that
HCR 6 would establish a legislative task force on unmanned
aircraft. She explained that the issue came to her attention
because of constituents' concerns about privacy as it relates to
drones. She said her research turned up positive things
happening in Al aska involving drones. She said she |earned that
the University of Alaska - Fairbanks, Center for Unnmanned
Aircraft Systenms Integration was a leader in the nation
regarding drone technology and was harnessing it for good
pur poses. She noted it was inportant to recognize the good, but
al so address privacy nmatters.

Representative Hughes explained that the resolution does two
things. It recognizes the acconplishnments of the University of
Alaska - Fairbanks, Center for Unmanned Aircraft Systens
Integration and the research conducted to advance this
technology in a safe manner. It establishes a task force within
the legislative branch to come up with policy recomendations
regardi ng privacy protection, as well as the use for public and
private purposes, including for |aw enforcenent.

She recalled a presentation on the House side by retired Ar
Force Brigadier General Rowe Bailey who brought a nodel of an
unmanned aircraft naned Scout. She l|isted sonme of the tasks
drones can do.

She said HCR 6 also recognizes that with new technol ogy cones
the need to revisit certain laws to ensure the safety of our
citizens.

10: 28: 44 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 20- April 4, 2013



CHAI R DYSON t hought the bill was on the right track.

SENATOR G ESSEL said she is supportive of the program but not
of another task force of 15 nmenbers and the expense of it.

SENATOR W ELECHONSKI al so wondered about the fiscal note for a
| arge task force and why 15 nmenbers and conmm ssioners are needed
on it.

CHAIR DYSON said that is a legitinmte concern. He conmented
that a drone is being used to survey the beaches for tsunam
debris. He noted that private aviation has concerns about the
mlitary using drones.

CHAIR DYSON held HCR 6 in conmittee. He suggested the sponsor
address sonme of the concerns at a |ater hearing.

10: 30: 41 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES poi nted out that April 10 is the date the
Center is trying to put forward its application. She said the
conmi ssioners are included on the task force because of the
areas in which a drone m ght be used, such as Natural Resources.
She added that the expenses of the task force will be absorbed
by departnents for conm ssioners attending. The thought was that
the funding within the legislative budget was adequate for
private industry nmenbers. Thus, the zero fiscal note.

SENATOR G ESSEL observed that there are two legislators on the
task force and they would not accrue a zero note.

10: 31: 42 AM

There being no further business to cone before the committee,
Chair Dyson adjourned the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee at 10:31 p.m

SENATE STA COW TTEE -21- April 4, 2013



